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This document 15 important and requires your immediate attention

If you are i any doubt as to any aspect of the proposals referred to m this document or the action you should
take, you should consult a stockbroker, sohator, accountant or other appropriate mndependent professional adviser
authornsed under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000

If you have sold or transferred all of your shares in Mountview Estates PL C, you should at once forward this
document and the accompanying Form of Proxy to the stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale
or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee

Notice of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the offices of Norton Rose LLP, 3 More London
Riverside, London SE1 2AQ 15 set out on pages 57 to 59 of this document To be valid for use at the Meeting, the
enclosed Form of Proxy should be completed and returned, i accordance with the instructions thereon, to Capita
Regustrars (Proxies), The Regstry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU as soon as possible and, m
any event, so as to arrive no later than 48 hours before the ime of the Meeting
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2 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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N 2010 2009 Increase

v 3 £ %

1

% Tumover (millions) 56.7 53.6 5.8

E Gross Profit (millions) 34.5 25.9 33.2

T

A Profit Before Tax {millions) 29.3 13.1 1237

E

5 Profit Before Tax excluding investment

o properties revaluation (millions) 27.1 163 66.3

L

C Equity Holders’ Funds (millions) 203.1 1875 8.3
Earnings per share (pence) 554.8 241.0 130.2
Net assets per share 52.1 48.1 8.3
Dividend per share (pence) 165 155 6.5
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Tt has been a very encouraging year 3

v

« Turnover up by 3 8 per cent é

» Gross Profit up by a third "

* Profit Before Tax more than doubled N

» Earnings per share up by more than 130 per cent S

s Proposed final dividend up by 10 pence per share giving an annual increase of 6 5 per cent ,i

;

These are the sort of figures which one would 1magine could only be achieved against the backdrop E’
of a strong and thriving economy but they have 1n fact been achieved in a very poor financial chmate

As the General Election approached various artificial shmuli had been put in place Of these only P

low nterest rates continue and this may not be for long i}

This statement which was released on 24 June 2010 was necessarily written before the new
government's first budget statement and so I could not know what further difficulties might be
imposed upon us We know now that Corporation Tax 15 to be reduced each year for four years which
may benefit the Company but we know also that everyone will probably have less disposable mcome
which may influence the strength of the housing market

However I believe that the Company 1s very soundly posthioned to survive the difficult times that
may he ahead and mdeed to take advantage of the opportunities that may arise During the year the
Company has reduced 1ts long-term borrowings by £23 million and has further reduced them since
1 April 1 beheve that during the next twelve months and more the Company will be presented with
opportunities to make the asset purchases that will serve it well for years to come

My staff and colleagues have worked hard and are to be congratulated on the results achieved Tam
happy that on the strength of these results 1t has been possible to be more generous with bonuses this
year [ am also happy that these results make 1t possible to recommend an increased final dividend

The final dividend of 115 pence per share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2010 recommended
by your Board 1s payable on 16 August 2010 to shareholders on the Register of Members as at 16 July
2010 This witl make a total dividend for the year ended 31 March 2010 of 165 pence per share which
1s more than three times covered by the earnings per share

DM SINCLAIR
Chairman

15 July 2010
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i, 1 RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES
v
I The Group’s business model is simple We are a property trading company buying tenanted properties
&; at a discount to nottonal vacant possession value and selling them when they become vacant
. Categories of Property held as trading stock
? The Group trades in the following categones
'I‘ Regulated tenanted (residential) units
E Ground rent units
5 Life tenancy units
A unut 1s a property, however large or small, whether freehold or feasehold, which 1s held subject to
E one tenancy
C

Analysis of the Group Trading portfolio by type as at 31 March 2010

No of units Cost

£m

Regulated Tenancies 2,251 2309
Ground Rents 1,100 17
Life Tenancies 366 243

Analyss of the Group Trading portfolio at the lower of cost and estirated net realisable value by
geographical location as at 31 March 2010

Regulated  Ground Rents Life Tenancies Portfolio

£m £m £m %
London (North} 587 07 02 232
London (South} 850 08 11 338
Kent, Surrey, Sussex, Dorset
Hampshire, IO W 218 003 59 108
Herts, Essex, Beds, Bucks,
Oxon, Camb, Norfolk, Suffolk,
Berks, Middx, Northants 401 01 68 183
Remainder of England and Wales 253 003 103 139

The Company’s modus operand 1s to buy tenanted residential property and sell it when it becomes
vacant Regulated investments which are characterised by early possession with rental returns
below market value and high margin on sale are becoming increasingly short in supply Life tenancy
stock has nominal rental income, 15 bought at a greater discount to vacant possession value and has
a higher margin on sale In addition, the mamtenance of the property 1s usually the responsibihity of
the life tenant
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1 RESIDENTIAL PROPERTIES {(confinued)} ?
During the finanaal year the Group has sold the following number of unuts \]’
E
Sales Price (£) No of units Location w
1 mulhon+ 4 London N
500,000-1 mullion 11 London and other 5
below 500,000 222 London and other T
e A
237 I
E
s
Analysis of acquisitions
Year ended E
No of 3103 2010 C
units Cost
£000
Regulated tenancies 11 2,679
Life tenancies 1 455
Ground rents (or created) 78 248
90 3,382

The above analysis does not include legal and commussion expenses directly related to the acquisition
of propertes or any repairs of a capital nature

The Group residential trading properttes are carried m the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net
realisable value In assessing the net realisable value the Group compares the net sales proceeds which
the Group expects on the sale of property with the vacant possession value

The Company has benefited from good market conditions Over the past year we have achieved
premium prices for properties, especially in sought-after areas such as Belsize Park and the West End
of London

Based on sales made during the finanaial year, the Directors do not consider that any stock write down
1 necessary in respect of its properties This 15 in contrast to last year’s reduction m stock value relabing
to the Magdalen Estate Portfolio Trading conditions in the early part of this financal year have not
been easy, but we have achieved sales of £42 mullion (2009 £39 mullion) demonstrating the hquidity of
the portfolio The average sales price achieved was £177,215 (2009 £161,360)

In order to achieve a reduction in finance costs and long term loans, we sigruficantly reduced
acquisition spendmg to £3 3 mullion (2009 £15 7 mullion)

Rental Income

The Company’s rental income 1s derived from five different sources

+ Regulated tenancies

+ Assured tenancies

» Assured shorthold tenancies
s Life tenancies

* (Ground rents

Where possible we still target those properties where the rent 15 capped and expenditure on
improvements and the provision of missing amenities leads to substantial increases in rental income

The operating contribution from the core business (comprising profits on sale of trading properties and
rental income) are analysed m Note 4 on page 30
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’; 2 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
\1, The analysis of the investment portfolio as at 31 March 2010 1s as follows
E
W Louise Goodwin Limited 50 uruts
A LG Properties Limated 11 urats
b
5
: All the properhes are located in Belsize Park, London NW3
.
E Mountview Estates PL C purchased the mvestment comparues in 1999 They are the only significant
s departures from the Company’s normal activities
E During the financial year, we disposed of three unuts for a total of £1 9 million
C

Outlook

Where units become vacant we are prepared to refurbish the properties and sell them by private treaty
to discerning purchasers who actively seek new homes in this prestigious area

Valuation

The properties comprised within the investment portfolio have been revalued externally for the
purpose of these accounts The value attributed to each individual property reflects the change n 1ts
condition where appropriate and any adjustment resuliing from changes in market circumstances
Detalls of the valuation of the mnvestment portfolio are disclosed on page 35

Prospects for the Group

Since the end of the financial year we are continuing to sell properties and we are pleased with the
results achieved Given our refinancing and the reduction i long term borrowings, we believe that

we are in a strong position to take advantage of any prume purchasing opporturuties which may arise
in the near future
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Executive Directors ¥

v

D M Sinclair FCA (Chairman) I

Joined the Company as Company Secretary in 1977, became a Drrector on 1 January 1982 and succeeded E

his late father as Chairman on 5 June 1990 Fellow of the Inshtute of Chartered Accountants in England W
and Wales

k

K Langnsh-Smuth “Sr

Joned the Company i 1974 and became a Director on 1 January 1982 A

]

Miss J L Murphy E

Joined the Company m 1990 as an assistant to the late Frank Sinclair and became a Director on 5

1 September 1995 v

L

Mrs MM Bray FCCA c

Joined the Company 1n 1996 and became Company Secretary Became a Director on 1 Aprid 2004 Fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants

Non-Executive Directors

J B Fulton FCA

Joined the Company as a Non-Executive Director on 1 January 2007 Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants m England and Wales He has held senior financial roles in multinational
comparnies

J AN Lamng FRICS

Jomed the Company as a Non-Executive Director on 1 January 2009 Fellow of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors Retired as a partner from Strutt and Parker Property Consultants and Estate
Agents m April 2009 but remamns as a consultant

JP Hall

Joined the Company as a Non-Executive Director on 1 December 2000 He was the Chief Executive
of Brewin Dolphin Holdings PLC from 1987 to September 2007 Mr J P Hall retired from the Board
at the Annual General Meeting 2009

Secretary and Regastered Office
Mrs MM Bray FCCA
Mountview House, 151 High Street, Southgate, London N14 6EW

Bankers
HSBC Bank Plc, 60 Queen Victoria Street, London EC4N 4TR
Barclays Bank Ple, One Churchull Place, London E14 5HP

Auditors
BSG Valentne
Lynton House, 7-12 Tavistock Square, London WC1 H9B

Solicitors
Norton Rose LLP
3 More London Riverside, London 5E1 2AQ

Registrars and Transfer Office
Capita Registrars
The Regustry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU

Brokers
Brewn Dolphin Secunties Ltd
12 Smuthfield Street, London EC1A 9BD
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting to the Members their Seventy-Third Annual Report together

with the Finanaial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2010

1

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Results for the year are set out in the Income Statement on page 18

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 115 pence per share The dividend
will be patd on 16 August 2010 subject to approval at the AGM on 11 August 2010 to

Shareholders on the register at the close of business on 16 July 2010

ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and its Subsidiary undertakings are as follows

Parent Company
Mountview Estates PL C Property Dealing

Subsidiary undertakings (wholly owned)

Hurstway Investment Company Limuted Property Dealing
Lowse Goodwin Limited Property Investment
AL G Properties Limited Property Investment

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND PROSPECTS

Details of the Group's Eerformance duning the year and expected future developments
arrman’s Statement and the Review of Operations on pages 4
to 6 In addition the Group has established the following Financial and Internal

are contained mn the C
Performance Indicators

Fmancial Key Performance Indicators

2010 2009
growth % growth %
Turnover 58 {12)
Profit before tax excluding
investment properties revaluations 663 412)
Earnungs per share 1302 (545)
Net assets per share 83 (02)

The Directors consider that there are no significant non-financial indicators n existence

Internal Performance Measures

2010 2009
£000 £000
Admirustrative expenses as
percentage of reveniue 71% 70%
Admunustrative expenses per member of staff 150 140
Profit before tax per member of staff 1,100 484

In the current economic climate, the impact of the credit crunch has caused a slowdown in the

rate of house price growth and a strong decline in levels of mortgage approvals
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND PROSPECTS (continued)

Risk review
The key risks to the Group's business are

& long-term downturn in the UK housing market
Our residential portfolio consists mainly of low value urits spread over hugh demand areas
of London and the South East The majonty of our properties are of relatively low value,
which are still affordable even during a market slowdown Our investment portfolio 15
located 1n the highly desirable area of Belsize Park

¢ sioruficant fluctuations in interest rates
The Company has entered 1nto an Interest Rate Swap Agreement, for a period of 5 years in
2008 on 1ts £40 mullion loan 1n order to reduce 1ts exposure to interest rate fluctuations

® alack of availallity of finance
We are reducing our stll modest level of gearing and improving hiquidity by cuting back on
purchases and repaymng loans

® long term worldwide recession

The shnnking of the UK economy combined with the worserung economuc outlook and hugher
unemployment may affect the prices obtained from the sale of properties

ROTATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr DM Sinclair and Mr K Langnish-
Smuth retire from the Board by rotation and beng eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
Resolutions for their re-appomtment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2010 was £250,000 divided nto
5,000,000 Ordinary Shares of 5 pence of which 3,899,014 were in 155ue

The nights and obligations attaching to the Company’s shares, as well as the powers of the
Company’s directors, are set out in the Company’s Articles of Association, a copy of which can
be viewed on the Company’s website at www mountviewplc co uk

The Company’s Articles of Assomation can only be amended by special resolution of
the shareholders

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL

The number of Ordinary Shares in the Company in which the Directors and their famihes were
mnterested 15 as follows

31 March i Aprnl
2010 2009
Ordiary Shares of 5p each

Mr DM Sinclarr including the followmg holding of 535,883 535,883
Sinclair Estates Liruted - 54,165
Mr DM Sinclair 15 a Director of the above company

Mr K Langnsh-Smith 307,000 304,225
Miss JL Murphy 1,500 1,500
Mrs MM Bray 12,302 11,477
Mr ] P Hall (retired at the last AGM) - 2,000

All the above interests are beneficial

There have been no changes in the interests of Directors in the share capital of the Company
between 31 March 2010 and 12 July 2010
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n 7 NOTIFIABLE INTERESTS IN SHARE CAPITAL
‘I" As at 12 July 2010, the following disclosures of major holdings of voting rights have been made
E (and have not been amended or withdrawn) to the Company pursuant to the requirements of
n Disclosure and Transparency Rule 5
Ordinary Shares Y% of Issued
E of 5p each Share Capatal
l Mr Phillip Trevor Wheater FDSGS Acct and
T Mrs Daphne Sinclair and Mr Alistair James Sinclair 633,780 16 25
r Mr Geoffrey Wilfred Bew Todd and Mr Stephen
5 Robin Oldfield Trustees of WD | Sinclarr
Grandchildren Settlement 179,400 460
1 Estate of Mrs Dons Sinclair 118,100 303
c Mrs M A Murphy 596,745 1531
Mrs A Willlams 145,450 373
Mrs § Simpkins 138,750 356
8 ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS AND SOCIAL/COMMUNITY ISSUES
Given the size of the Company and the nature of its business as a property trading company,
the Company does not currently have any policies in place in relahon to environmental, social
or community 1ssues
9, EMPLOYEES
The Company provides regular training for its employees relating to the software used mn the
business, in order to ensure the ongoing development of each employee’s skills and knowledge
A great number of our employees have worked for the Company for many years and there 15
very little turnover of staff
10 SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS
Certain banking agreements to which the Company 15 a party (described mn Note 19 to the
Consohdated Financial Statements} alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company
following a takeover bid
There are no other significant agreements to which the Company 1s a party that take effect, alter
or terminate upon a change of control of the Company following a takeover bid
There are no contractual or other agreements or arrangements n place between the Company
and third parties which, in the opiruon of the Directors, are essential to the business of
the Company
11 DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
There was no Contract in existence during or at the end of the financial year in which a Director
of the Company is, or was, matenally interested, and which 1s or was sigmificant 1n relation to
the Company’s business
12 DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE
The Company purchases lrability insurance covenng the Directors and Officers of the Company
and 1ts Subsidiary undertakings
13 POLICY ON THE PAYMENT OF CREDITORS

The Company’s policy 1n respect of all its supphers 1s to settle the terms of payment when
agreeing the terms of each transaction The Company also ensures that the suppliers are made
aware of the terms of payment and abide by them




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 11
v
o
L
13 POLICY ON THE PAYMENT OF CREDITORS (continued) '\i:'
Trade creditors existing at 31 March 2010 relating to purchases of property stock generally Y
complete 28 days after exchange of contracts Other trade creditors were settled, on average, E
21 days after incurring the hiability (2009 21 days) w
14 REMUNERATION POLICY k
S
The Company’s Shareholders wili be asked to approve the Remuneration Report contained 1n r
the Annual Report and Accounts at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 11 August 2010 '1’:
and a resolution 1s drafted accordingly r
5
15 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Directors’ statement on corporate governance 15 set out on pages 13 to 15 E
C
16  HEALTH AND SAFETY
The Group 1s commutted to achieving a high standard of health and safety The Group regularly
reviews 1ts health and safety policies and practices to ensure that appropnate standards
are maintained The gas supply and apphances within all of the Group’s relevant residenhal
properties are independently inspected under the Gas Safety (Installabion and Use) Amended
Regulations 1996 and certificates of comphance 1ssued
17  DONATIONS
During the year the Group made charnitable donations of £24,500 (2009 £19,065)
There were no political donattons (2009 £rul)
18  GOING CONCERN BASIS
The Directors conhinue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts
The financial position of the Group including key financial ratios 1s set out in the Review of
Business and Prospects
The Group 15 historically profitable, has considerable liquidity and recently reviewed 1ts long
term borrowing facilities with the banks As a result, the Directors believe the Group 1s very well
placed to manage its business risks successfully and have a good expectation that both the
Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue their operations Further detailed
information 1s set out on pages 27 and 37
19  POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to the period end that
require disclosure
20 AUDITORS
Messrs BSG Valentine have indicated their willingness to continue 1n office and a resolution for
the reappointment of BSG Valentine as auditors for the ensuing year will be proposed at the
nnual General Meeting
B d
MM
Secretary

Mountview House
151 High Street
Southgate

London N14 6EW
15 July 2010
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group financial statements n
accordance with the applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union In addition the Directors are responsible for prepanng the Parent Company
accounts in accordance with UK GAAP

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each finanaial year, which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss for
that period In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to

select surtable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

state that the frnanaal statements comply with IFRS's as adopted by the European Unton,
prepare the financial statements on the gomng concern basis unless 1t 15 inapproprate to presume
that the Group will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Compantes Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregulanties

In so far as the Directors are aware

® there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and
e the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit informahon and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information

The Directors confirm to the best of their knowledge

o the consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared m accordance with United
Kingdom law and the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} and i accordance
with rule 4 1 12(3)(a) of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, have been prepared i accordance
with the applicable set of accounting standards and give a true and fair view of the assets,
habilities and financial position and profit or loss of the Group and the undertakings included 1n
the consolidation taken as a whole, and

e  the Management Report represented by the Directors’” Report has been prepared in accordance
with rule 4 1 12(3)(b) of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, and includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of the Group and the undertakings
included 1n the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the prinaipal risks
and uncertainties the Group faces

The Directors are responsible for the mamntenance and ntegnty of the Group website
wrRw mountviewplc co uk

By Urder e Bodrd
M B
Secretary

Mountview House
151 High Street
Southgate

London N14 6EW
15 July 2010
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The Financial Reportmtﬁ Council (FRC) published a new version of the Combined Code in June 2008
This 15 applicable to the Company for the reporting year commencing 1 Apnl 2009 The Board
1s satisfied that as a “small company” outside the FTSE 350 1t would currently meet most of
the requirements

Mountview Estates PL C 1s a family controlled Company There 1s a concert party in existence,
whose net aggregate shareholdings amount to approximately 53 percent of the 1ssued share capital
of the Company

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2010 the Company has been in compliance with the Code
provisions set out in Section 1 of the June 2008 FRC Combined Code on Corporate Governance with
certain exceptions noted below

® A2 1requires justificahion for combining the posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer There
1s no formal division of responsibilities but nerther the Chairman nor any other member of the
Board has unfettered powers of decision

Given the size of the Company, there 1s no formal nomination of a senior independent director
The Board

As at the year ended 31 March 2010 the Board compnsed the Chairman, Mr DM Sinclan, three
executive Directors and two non-executive Directors All Directors have access to independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company and to the services of the Company Secretary who
18 responstble to the Board for ensuring the correct procedures are followed

In addition to ad-hoc meetings arranged to discuss particular transactions and events, the full Board
meets at least four tmes a year and retams full and effective control over the Group’s achivities

Meetings MrDM MrK MsssJ]L Mrs MM MrJP MrJB MrJAN
Sinclair Langnish- Murphy  Bray Hall Fulton  Laing
Smith
Full Board 4 4 4 4 1 4 4
Audit Commuttee 2 - - 2 -
Remuneration
Commuttee 1 - - - - 2 2

Day to day management 15 delegated to the Executive Board which focuses on major transactions,
business growth, strategy, cash management and control

There 15 regular communication with the Non-Executive Directors in order to keep them informed on
the Company’s operations

All members of the Board are subject to the re-election provisions of the Articles which require them
to offer themselves for re-election at least once every three years and, on appointment, at the first
Annual General Meeting {AGM) after appointment Details of those directors offering themselves for
re-appointment are set out in the Directors” Report on page 9

Em—me-H /0%
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'; Going concern
v The Group's business achvities together with the factors likely to affect 1ts future development, position
EJE performance and position are set out i the Notes to the Accounts on pages 27 and 28
W The financial position of the Group, 1ts cash flow, liquidity position and borrowing facilities, are
described on page 37
£
5 The Board 1s confident that the Company have adequate resources to continue in existence for the
1 foreseeable future For this reason the Group continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
'T‘ the accounts
E
5 Directors — performance evaluation
The Board 1s of the opinion that the Directors’ performance 1s continuously evaluated throughout
I’j the year
< Any areas of concern are addressed during our regular management or Board meetings Each of the

Directors 1s tesponsible for his/her self-appraisal process i respect of their individual performance
during the year This 1s in turn discussed with the members of the Remuneratton Commuttee who
also review the performance of the Board as a whole

Remuneration Commattee

The Remuneration Commuttee comprnises Mr ] B Fulton (non-executive Director)and Mr J A N Laimng
{non-executive Director) The Commuttee, which 1s chaired by Mr ] A N Laing, monutors, reviews and
makes recommendations to the Board on all elements of the remuneration of the executive Directors
The Committee meets twice a year

Mr DM Sinclar, the Chairman of the Company, 1s invited by the Remuneration Commuttee members
to attend one meeting or part of any meeting as and when appropniate

No Director 15 mvolved i deciding his/her own remuneration and the remuneration of the non-
executive Directors 1s determined by the full Board

The report of Directors’ Remuneration 1s set out on pages 16 to 17
Nomnation Commtttee

The Nominahon Commuttee 1s responsible for the selection and approval of appomntments to the Board
Given the small size of the Company the Chairman of the Nomination Commuttee 1s Mr DM Smclair
and all the Directors of the Company are members There were no meetings during the year

Audit Commuttee

The Audit Commuttee comprises Mr | B Fulton (non-executive Director) and Mr J A N Laing (non-
executive Director) The Commuttee, which 1s chaired by Mr J B Fulton, has clear terms of reference
agreed by the Board and 1s responsible for ensuring that the Group’s system of financial control 15
adequate It also keeps under review the cost effectiveness of the audit and the independence and
objechivity of the auditors

Thus includes the approval of any non-audit service fees above a relatively normal level

The Comimuttee 15 satisfied that the taxation services provided by BSG Valentine 1s overseen by partners
and staff who are excluded from the audit procedure

Mr DM Sinclair and Mrs M M Bray attended two of the meetings held by the Audit Commuttee

The Commuttee meets three imes a year and one of these meetings 15 with the external auditors without
an executive director 1n attendance The Chairman of the Audit Commuttee reports to the Board on
matters discussed with external auditors The Audit Commuttee monutors the integrity of the financial
statements and reviews the interim and annual financial statements before submission to the Board
Further the Commuttee seeks to ensure that the external auditors are mdependent
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Mr ] B Fulton s a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales }'
v
The Audit Commuttee has satisfied itself that the Company complies with the principles set out in the 1
Smath Report E
w
Communications with Shareholders
3
The Company communicates with its sharcholders by way of the Annual Reports and Accounts and f
half yearly interim reports Investors may use the Company’s Annual General Meeting to communicate A
with the Board The Board mcluding the non-executive Directors 1s available throughout the year to T
listen to the views of Shareholders E
Risk Management P
Details of this are included in Note 3 m the Report of the Directors on pages 8 and 9 fi

Internal Financial Control

An ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the sigmificant risks faced by the Group
was 1n place throughout the period from 1 April 2009 to the date of approval of the Annual Report
and Accounts This process 1s regularly reviewed by the Board and accords with the Internal Control
Guidance for Directors in the Combined Code

The Directors are responsible for establishing and maintairung the Group’s system of internal financial
control Internal control systems in any group are designed to meet the particular needs of that group
and the nisks to which 1f 1s exposed, and by their nature can provide reasonable but not absolute
protection against material misstatement or loss Due to its size, the Group does not have an internal
audit function The key procedures which the Directors have established with a view to providing
effective internal financial control are as follows

Identification of Bustness Risks - The Board 1s responsible for identfying the major business risks
faced by the Group, such as fluctuations in interest rates, mflation rates, fluctuations in consumer
spending, employment levels and for determining the appropriate course of achon to manage
those risks

Management Structure — The Board has overall responsibility for the Group and there 1s a formal
schedule of matters specifically reserved for decision by the Board

Corporate Acconnting — Responsibility levels are communicated throughout the Group as part of the
corporate accounting procedures These procedures set out authorisation levels, segregahion of duties
and other control procedures

Quality and Integnty of Personnel - The integnty and competence of personnel 1s ensured through
high recruitment standards and close Board supervision

Momtoring - Internal financial control procedures are reviewed by the Board asa whole These reviews
embrace the provision of regular information to management, and monitoring of performance and
key performance indicators
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’; UNAUDITED INFORMATION
Y Remuneration Commuittee
E The Remuneration Commuttee, as constituted by the Board 1s responsible for the determination of
i the remuneration of the executive Directors of Mountview Estates PL C The Board as a whole
considers the remuneration of the non-executive Directors External advisors were not used in the year
E under review
~S; Remuneration Policy
A The Group operates 1n a competitive environment In formung its policy on remuneration the Group
T aims to set reward packages which enable the Group to attract, retain and mohvate executives with
E the appropnate skills and experience
The Remuneration Commnuttee has developed the following specific remuneration package consisting
P of two elements
L
c ®  Basic salary and benefits - the fixed part of the package

®  Annual discretionary bonuses

Basic salares and benefits mn kind for each executive Director are reviewed on an annual basis by the
Remuneration Commuttee, which takes into account indrvidual responsibilities, experience and
performance as well as competitive market practice Benefits include the provision of a car, private
medical health msurance and life insurances

Directors have the choice of the use of a company car or a cash alternative
All members of staff benefit from health and life msurances
The Group does not operate any share option scheme

Bonuses are recommended by the Commuittee and approved by the Board having regard to the
performance of the Group and the executive Directors durm%l the year In assessing corporate
performance the Remuneration Commuttee takes into account the Group’s corporate performance
withun the property sector

Non-Executive Directors
Each non-executive Director recerves fees of £24,000 per annum The non-executive Directors are not
entitled to bonuses, benefits or pension contributions

Pensions
The Company contributes 5% of the total of the executive Directors’ gross annual salaries and bonuses to
a Stakeholder Pension Scheme This scheme 15 available to all employees of the Company

Performance Graph

The graph below 1s prepared in accordance with The Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002
and 1llustrates the Company’s performance compared to a broad equity market index over the past
five years As the Company 15 a constituent of the FTSE All-Share Real Estate Index, that index 1s
considered the most appropriate form of broad equity market index agamst which the Company’s
performance should be plotted Performance 1s measured by Total Shareholder Return as represented
by share price performance and dividend

Single Sum Total Return, Tax Default, i GBY, 100 invested
o] I 1 1 1 I
s AVIWJ"-". - ——— FTSE Afl Share/ Real Estate |4
N ""\ Invest & Sves TR (IN)
L AL rf'ﬁ‘r-r-f"f MJ 1
s ‘ ot — Mountview Estates (EQ) [ _116
7 T s
125 v}_{ N ’_“q
o] ~ n
100 e nciai e AP e i U\ A "‘r}
b ; 52
L~ p -
R P
7
a7
§ 0§ 0% & & &£ & 3 ¥ o} B P 2 &£ 8 B P R OB G
H B = H z s 2 8 3 E = s - 13 = 13 3 5 2 5
182603me31[03[20351‘03”03/3)10

The graph looks at the value of £100 mvested in Mountview Estates PL C on 31 March each year
compared to the value of £100 invested in the FTSE All-Share Real Estate Index
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AUDITED INFORMATION
Pensions
Benefits Contri-
Salary Bonus mm kind  butions Total
2010 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive
DM Sinclair 250 240 38 24 552
K Langnsh-Smth 150 80 24 1 265
Miss ] L Murphy 180 150 1 16 357
Mrs MM Bray 212 165 - 18 395
Non-Executive
TP Hall 10 - - - 10
JB Fulton 24 - - - 24
JAN Lamng 24 - - - 24
850 635 73 69 1,627
Pensions
Benefits Contn-
Salary Bonus mkind  butions Total
2009 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive
D M Sinclarr 250 200 39 21 510
K Langrish-Smith 150 65 24 10 249
Miss JL Murphy 180 120 13 14 327
Mrs MM Bray 200 135 - 15 350
Non-Executive
J P Halil 24 - - - 24
JB Fulton 24 - - - 24
JAN Laing 6 - - ~ 6
834 520 76 60 1,490

Service Contracts
Each of the executive Directors who served during the year has a service agreement, which can be
terminated on one year’s notice by erther party

Approval
An Ordinary Resolution to approve this report will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company

This report was approved by the Board on 15 July 2010

JA N Lamng
Chatrman of the Remuneration Commnuitee
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18 CONSOQLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
g for the year ended 31 March 2010
4]
N Year Year
‘T, ended ended
i 3103 2010 3103 2009
E Notes £000 £000
w
REVENUE 4 56,697 53,599
3
Sl. Cost of sales 4 (22,191) (27,657)
A
i GROSS PROFIT 34,506 25,942
E
5 Admunistrative Expenses (4,046) (3,767)
E Operating profit before changes in fair value
e of investment properties 30,460 22,175
Increase / (Decrease) mn fair value of investments 2,142 (3,210}
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 32,602 18,965
Finance costs 8 (3,347) (5,906)
Income from investments 9 - 3
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 29,255 13,062
Taxahon - current (7,969) (4,864)
Taxation — deferred 349 1,191
Taxation 10 (7,620) {3,673}
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS 21,635 9,389
Basic and diluted earnings per share {pence) 12 554 8 2410

The notes on pages 23-42 are an mtegral part of these consohdated financial statements
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Company number 328020

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment propertes

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories of trading properties
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves attributable to

equity holders of the company
Share capital

Capital redemption reserve
Caputal reserve

Other reserves

Cash flow hedge reserve
Retatned earnings

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term borrowings
Deferred tax

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bank overdrafts and loans
Trade and other payables
Current tax payable

Dernvative financial instruments

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Apprgved by the Boayd on 15 July 2010

M D mclon. .
D SINCLAIR Chatrman

Notes

13
14

16
17

19
20

19
18

21

As at
3103 2010
£000

2,422
32,872

35,294

256,964
1,197
443

258,604

293,898

——

195

55

25

56
(3,640)

206,366

203,057

65,000
8,157

73,157

8,876
1,355
3,813
3,640

17,684
90,841

293,898

Lol gonl i

-~
K LANGRISH-SMITH Director

as at 31 March 2010

As at
31 03 2009
£000

2,567
32,195

34,762

268,806
660
840
270,306

305,068

(3,614)
190,773

187,490

88,000
8,506

96,506

13,026
2,055
2,377
3,614

21,072
117,578

305,068

The notes on pages 23-42 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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for the year ended 31 March 2010

Notes
Changes 1n equuty
for year ended
31 March 2009

Balance as at 1 April 2008

Profit for the year

Cash flow hedge 21
Dividends 1
Balance at

31 March 2009 24
Changes 1n equity

for year ended
31 March 2010
Balance as at 1 April 2009

Profit for the year

Movements in

cash flow hedge 21
Dividends 11
Balance at

31 March 2010 24

Capital Cash
redemp- flow
Share  Capitat tion hedge Other  Retained
capital  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves  earmings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
195 25 55 - 56 187,426 187,757
9,389 9,389
(3,614) (3,614}
{6,042} (6,042)
195 25 55  (3.614) 56 190,773 187490
195 25 55 (3.614) 56 190,773 187490
21,635 21,635
(26) (26)
(6,042) (6,042)
195 25 55 (3,640) 56 206,366 203,057

The fair value movements on those derivative financial mstruments qualifying for hedge accounting
under IAS39 are taken to reserve

The notes on pages 23-42 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 21
for the year ended 31 March 2010 g
L
Year Year ¥
ended ended v
31032010 3103 2009 1
Notes £000 £000 E
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING W
ACTIVITIES
E
Profit from operahions 32,602 18,965 Sr
A
Adjustments for T
Depreciation 156 192 E
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5 145 s
(Increase}/ Decrease in fair value of
investment properties (2,142) 3,210 E
C
Operating cash flows before movement
in working capital 30,621 22,512
Decrease in mnmventories 11,841 2,555
(Increase)/Decrease 1n recervables (538) 459
{Decrease) in payables (822) (1,053)
Cash generated from operations 41,102 24,473
Interest pard (3,347 (5.906)
Income taxes paid {6,410) (6,443)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 31,345 12,124
Investing activities
Interest recerved - 3
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 1,895 1,005
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment - 15
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13 (11) (58}
Capital expenditure on investment properties 14 (434) (350)
Net cash inflow from investing activities 1,450 612
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings (23,800) (9,110)
Equity dividend paid (6,042) (6,042)
Net cash (outflow) from financing activities (29,842) (15,152)
Net increasef(decrease) 1n cash
and cash equivalents 2,953 (2,413)
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginmng of the period (11,211 (8,798)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 19(a) (8,258) (11,211)

The notes on pages 23-42 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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for the year ended 31 March 2010

Profit for the year

Net (expense) recogmsed directly in equity
Total recogrused mncome

The total recogrused income

in the year 1s attributable to
Equity shareholders of the parent

Notes

21

Year
ended
31032010
£000
21,635
(26)

21,609

21,609

Year
ended

31 03 2009
£000

9,389
(3,614}

5,775

5775

The notes on pages 23-42 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 23
for the year ended 31 March 2010 g

L

GENERAL INFORMATION '“F'
v

Mountview Estates PL C (the Company) and 1ts Subsidiaries (the Group) 1s a property trading I
company with a portfolio in England and Wales E
The Company 15 a public imited hability company incorporated, domiciled and registered "
in England k
The address of 1ts registered office 1s 151 High Street, Southgate, London N14 6EW ?
The Company website 1s www mountviewplc co uk A
The Company has its primary histing on the London Stock Exchange lIE
These consolidated fmanaial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors 5

on 15 July 2010

P

L

C

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied m the preparation of these consohdated financial
statements are set out below These policies have been consistently apphed to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated

(a) Basis of Preparation
The Group’s financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of investment properties, and in accordance with
applicable International Finanaial Reporting Standards, (IFRS) as adopted by the EU

The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in
accordance with UK GAAP These are presented on pages 45 to 52

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the applicatien of accounting
policies

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas where
assumptions and estimates are sigruficant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed tn note 2{u) “Eshmates and Judgements”

(b)  Basis of Consolidation
The Group’s financial statements incorporate the results of Mountview Estates PL C and
all of us Subsidiary undertakings made up to 31 March each year Control 15 achieved
where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
investee enterprise so as to obtain benefits from its activities

The Group exercises control through voting nights The existence and effect of potential
voting nghts that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity

Subsidiaries are fully consohidated from the date on which control 1s transferred to
the Group

On acquisition, the identifiable assets, habilines and contmEent habilities of a subsidiary
are measured at thetr fair values at the date of acquisiion The purchase method has been
used 1n consolidating the subsidiary financial statements

All significant inter company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group comparnies are ehmimated on consohdation within the
conschidated accounts

Consistent accounting policies have been used across the Group
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for the year ended 31 March 2010

2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

(0

(d)

{e}

H

(8

Segment reporting
A business segment 1s a group of assets and operations engaged 1n providing products
or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other
business segments

The Group has 1dentified two such segments as follows

» core portfolio

+ residential investments

All above segments are UK based More details are given in note 5

Income Tax

The charge for current tax 1s based eon the results for the year as adjusted for items which
are non-assessable or disallowed It 15 calculated using rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 15 accounted for using the balance sheet habihity method in respect of
temporary differences ansing from differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabiibies in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit In principle, deferred tax Liabilittes are recogmised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that 1t
15 probable that taxable profits will be available agamst which deductible temporary
differences can be utihsed Such assets and liabilities are not recogrused 1if the temporary
difference anses from the imtial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and habilies 1n a transaction, which affects neither the tax profit nor the
accounting profit

Deferred tax habilities are recogmised for taxable temporary differences ansing on
investments 1n Subsidiaries, except where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and 1t 13 probable that the temporary difference will not reverse mn
the foreseeable future

Deferred tax 15 calculated at the rates that are expected to apply when the asset or hability
1s settied Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when 1t
relates to items credited or charged directly to equuty, in which case the deferred tax 15
also dealt with 1n equuty

Deferred tax assets and habilihes are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Group mtends to settle 1ts current tax assets and
hiabilities on a net basis

Revenue
Revenue includes proceeds of sales of properties, rents from properties, which are held as
trading stock, investment and other sundry items of revenue before charging expenses

Rental income 1s recognised over the rental period

Sales of properties are recogrused on legal completion as in the Directors’ opmion this is
the point at which the substantial risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred

Dividend distribution
Dividend distnibution to the Company’s shareholders 1s recognised as an expense in the
Group’s financial statements m the penod in which the dividends are approved

Interest Expense

Interest expense for borrowings are recognised within “finance costs” m the income
statement using the effective interest rate method The effective interest method 1s a
method of calculating the finanaal habihity and of allocating the interest expense over the
relevant period
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for the year ended 31 March 2010

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contnued)

(h)

()

()

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at hustorical cost less accumulated depreciation
Historical cost includes expenditure that 15 directly attributable to the acquisition of the
item Subsequent costs are included 1n the asset’s carrying amount or recogrused as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when 1t 1s probable that future economic benefits
assoaated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred

Depreciation 15 calculated so as to write off the cost of an asset, less its estimated restdual
value, over the useful economic life of that asset using the straight-hne method as follows

Freehold property - 2%

Fixtures and fithings and office equipment - 20%
Computer equipment - 25%
Motor Vehicles — reducing balance method - 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful hives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropnate, at
the end of each financial year An asset’s carrying amount 1s written down immediately
to its recoverable amount 1f 1its carrymg amount 1s greater than its eshmated recoverable
amount Gams and losses on disposals are determmed by comparing proceeds with
carrymg amount These are included n the income statement

Impairment of Assets

Assets that have an indefirute useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s recogrused for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The
recoverable amount 1s the hugher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units) Any impairment 1s
recogrused in the Income Statement in the year in which it occurs

Investment Property
Property that 1s held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and
that 1s not occupied by the comparues in the consohdated Group, 1s classified as
mvestment property

Investment property 1s measured mhally at 1ts cost mcluding related transaction costs

After imihial recognition, investment property 1s carried at fair value Fair value 1s based
on active market prices adusted, 1f necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condhition of the speaified asset If this imformation ts not available the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent pnices or less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections

Subsequent expenditure 1s included in the carrying amount of the property when 1t 1s
probable that future economuc benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the itemn can be measured reliably All other repairs and maintenance
costs are charged to the income statement duning the financial period in which they
are incurred

Gains or losses arsing from changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment properhes
are included 1n the income statement of the period in whuch they anse
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2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conttnued)

(k)

{

(m)

{n)

{0}

(p)

Inventories - trading properties

These comprise residential properttes all of which are held for resale, and are shown 1n
the financial statements at the lower of cost and eshmated net realisable value Cost
includes legal fees and commussion charges incurred during acquisition together with
improvement costs Net realisable value 15 the net sale proceeds which the Group expects
on sale of & property 1n tts current conditron with vacant possession Where residential
properties are sold tenanted, net realised value 1s the current market value net of
assoctated selling costs There were no such sales dunng the financial year The analysis
of the Group revenue as at 31 March 2010 1s on page 30

Pension Costs

The Group operates a stakeholder contribution pension scheme for employees The
annual contributions payable are charged to the Income Statement The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid

Financal Instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet when
the Group has become a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument Trade and
other receivables and trade and other payables and cash and cash equrvalents are
measured at their net realisable value

Bank Borrowings
Loans are recorded at fair value at imitial recogrition and thereafter at amortised costs
under the effective interest method

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term hughly liquid investments with original matunties of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts

Denvahives

The Group uses derivative nstruments to help manage 1ts interest rate risk In accordance
with its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or 1ssue derivatives for trading purposes

The derivatives are recogrused inutially at fair value Subsequently, the gan or loss on
remeasurement to fair value 1s recognised immediately in the income statement, unless
the derivatives qualfy for cash flow hedge accounting in which case any gamn or loss 1s
taken to equity in a cash flow hedge reserve

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group 1s required to document i advance
the relationship between the item being hedged and the hedging instrument The Group
15 also required to demonstrate that the hedge will be lughly effective on an ongoing basis
The effectiveness testing 15 reperformed at each period end to ensure that the hedge
remains highly effective
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2 ACCQUNTING POLICIES (continued) ?
(@) New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards \;
The Group has considered or apphed the following standards for the period commencing ‘E
1 April 2009 There has been no significant impact to the finanaal informabon as a result
of applying these standards for the first time b
* [AS1 (revised 2007) - Presentation of Financial Statements - has introduced a number s
of changes in the format and presentation of the financial statements ;
* [FRS 8 - Operahing segments — 1s a disclosure standard that has had no impact on ]
the designation of the Group’s reportable segments 1;
» [FRS 7 (amendments) — The amendments to IFRS 7 expands the disclosures required
1n respect of fair value measurements and hquidity risk p
* IAS 39 (amendments) - The amendments permit an entity to reclassify non- (If

(r)

derivative financial assets of the ‘fair value through profit or loss’ and ‘available for
sale’ categories in very hmited aircumstances This was not applicable to the Group

* TAS540 (amendments) - This has been amended to include within its scope investment
property 1n the course of construction It does not have an impact on the Group’s
financial statements

s 1AS 23 (revised 2007} - The principle change to the standard was to elimunate the
option to expense all borrowing costs when incurred The impact of this was not
considered to have a material impact on the Groups’s financial statement

Certain new standards and interpretations have been published that are mandatory for
the Group’s accounting periods beginmung on or after 1 April 2010 or later periods and
which the entity has not yet adopted Except where stated none of these standards are
expected to have a significant impact on recognition or measurement of the Group’s
assets or liabilities

* [FRS 1 (amended)/IAS 27 (amended) — Cost of an mnvestment 1n a Subsidiary,
Jontly Controlled Entity

* IFRS 3 (revised 2008) — Business combinations

» TAS 27 (revised 2008} — Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

* Improvements to IFRSs (Apnil 2009)

The Parent Company and subsidiaries have not adopted [FRS 1n their individual accounts

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Areas of Estimation Uncertainty

Goung concern

The Directors are required to make an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue to
trade as a iomg concern Because of the difficult market conditions prevailing this
assessment has been subject to more uncertainties than are usual

The two main considerations were as follows

1 Refmanang of banking facilities
The Group has successfully renegotiated 1ts £20 mullion revelving loan facility with
HSBC Bank The new termunation date of this facility 1s January 2015

The Group has successfully renegotiated 1ts £75 nullion revolving loan facility with
Barclays Bank The new termunation date of this facility 1s November 2014
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L

& 2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Y ()  Cntical Accounting Judgements and Key Areas of Esimation Uncertainty (continued)
‘Er 2 Covenant compliance

The core facihty has two covenants, both unchanged by the new facilibies, covering

. loan to value (“LTV"} ratio and mnterest cover The Group has remained well within
g both of these covenants during the year

T On the basis of the above, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group
’;‘ and the Company have adequate resources to continue 1n operational existence for
F the foreseeable future

> Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
P statemnents

(15 Distinction between tnveshment and trading property

The Group considers the intention at the outset when each property ts acquired mn order
to classify the property as either an investment or a trading property Where the
intention 15 to erther trade the property or where the property 1s held for immediate
sale upon receving vacant possession within the ordinary course of business, the
property 1s classified as trading property Where the intention 1s to hold the property
for its long-term retail yield and /or capital appreciation, the property 1s classified as an
mvestment property

Investment properties
In considering the values attributable to the investment portfoho, the following factors
are taken into consideration

+ sales of properhies within the Group’s portfolio during the preceding 12 months
« sales of properties m the same district whenever the information 1s available

+ pubhshed market research concerning the performance of the property market m
this region and district

« factors affecting individual properties and uruts in relation to value, and factors in
the district which might affect the values of individual properties and units

The valuation of the portfolios were made i accordance with the requirements of
the RICS Valuation Standards Manual, Sixth Edition and International Valuation
Standard 40

Carrymg value of trading stock
The Group's residential trading stock is carried in the balance sheet at the lower of cost
and net realisable value

As the Group’s business model 1s to sell trading stock on vacancy, net realisable
value 15 the net sales proceeds which the Group expects on sale of a property with
vacant possession

The Board 15 of the opinizon that the housing market continued to sustain recovery during
2009-10 and based on that assumption it was decided that no wnte downs to net realtsable
value were necessary during the year ended 31 March 2010 (31 March 2009 £3 muillion)

Inventory expected to be settled in more than 12 months

The Board estimate that inventory of £17 3 million wilt be settled within the next
12 months, with the remaining mventory value expected to be settled 1n more than
12 months This estimation 1s based on the average cost of sales of inventory over the
last 3 year period Mountview’s business, hustoric and current has involved the purchase
for sale of residential properties subject to regulated tenances, such properties bemng
sold when vacant possession 1s obtamned

Regulated tenancies by their nature are not for any speaific period of time and in most
cases they do not become vacant untl the death of the tenant

It 15 difficult to predict with any certainty the time at which Mountview’s inventory
properties might become vacant
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ?'
v
1 Finanaial risk factors i
The Group’s activities expose 1t to a variety of financial nsks market risk (including price E
risk and cash flow nisk) credit nsk and liquudity risk The Group's policies on financial w
risk management are to mirurruse the nsk of adverse effect on performance and to ensure
the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern E
The financial nisks relate to the following fmancial instruments trade recervables, cash T
and cash equivalents, trade and other payables and borrowings ?
(@) Market nsk E
The Group 15 exposed to market nsk through interest rates and availability of credit
Price risk P
— the Group 15 exposed to property price and property rental risk é
Cash flow and farr value interest rate risk
— as the Group has no sigruficant mnterest bearing assets, 1ts income and operating cash
flows are substanhally independent of changes in market interest rates
Long Term Borrowings
- borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk The
Group’s cash flow and fair value interest rate risk 15 periodically monitored by the
Group’s management The Group uses derivative mstruments to help manage 1ts
interest rate risk
The Board 1s confident that based on the historical performance of the Group, the finance
costs are sufficiently covered by profits from operations
As at 31 March 2010 we had decreased our long term borrowings by £23 million to £65
mallion (2009 £88 muliion)
The Group has two covenants covering loan to value ratio and interest cover These
covenants were complied with during the financal year and we are confident to meet
them at the interim stage
(b) Credit nisk

(c}

Exposure to credit risk and interest risk anses i normal course of the Group’s business

The Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk Credit risk arises from cash
and cash equivalents as well as credit exposures with respect to rental customers,
including outstanding recervables The Directors are of the opinion that credrt risk 1s
mirumal due to the low level of trade receivables relative to the Balance Sheet totals
Regulated tenants are incentrvised through the benefit of their tenancy agreement to
avoid default on their rent

Lifetime tenancies are generally at low or zero rent and hence suffer mimmal credit nsk

Liquidity nsk

The Group’s liquidity posttion 1s moritored daily by management and 1s reviewed
quarterly by the Board of Directors The Group ensures that it mamntams sufficient cash
for operational requirements at all times The nature of its business 15 very cash generative
from 1ts gross rents and sales of trading properties

In adverse frading condihions, new acquisitions can be mirarmised, and as a consequence
reduce the gearing level and improve the liquidity A summary table with matunty of
financial Lhabiities 1s presented in the note 19
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contmnued)

2 Capital nsk management
The Group’s objective when managing capital 15 to safeguard the Group's ability to
cortiinue as a gomg concern The Group morutors capital on the basis of the geanng ratio
This ratio 1s calculated as net debt divided by total debt and equuty

2010 2009
£000 £000
Total borrowings 73,876 101,026
Less cash and cash equivalents (443) {840)
Net borrowings 73,433 100,186
Total equity 203,057 187,490
Total borrowings plus equity 276,490 287,676
Geanng ratio 27% 35%
4 ANALYSIS OF REVENUE AND COST OF SALES
All revenue anises in the United Kingdom
1 Rental mncome from tenancies of occupled properties The mcome 1s recognised on an

accruals basis

2 Sale of stock properties This 15 recogmsed on the date of legal completion

2010 2009
£000 £000
Revenue
Cross sales of properties 42,927 39,372
Gross rental income 13,770 14,227
56,697 53,599
Cost of Sales
Cost of properties sold 17,547 22,344
Property expenses 4,644 5,313
22,191 27,657
Gross Profit
Sales of properties 25,380 17,028
Net rental mcome 9,126 8,914

34,506 25,942
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION ‘;'
A business segment 1s a group of assets and operations engaged m tﬁrowdmg products or v
services that are subject to nsks and returns that are different from those of other business I
segments The Group momtors its operations in the following segments ‘E,
2010 2004 E
Property  Property Property  Property 5
Trading Investment Group Trading Investment Group I
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 T
E
Revenue 55,992 705 56,697 52,829 770 53,599 5
Operating profit P
before changes L
n fair value of ¢
mvestment
properties 30,116 3 30,460 21,859 316 22,175
Finance costs (3,347 (3,347) (5,903) (5,903}
Profit after tax 21,635 9,389
Assets 260,866 33,023 293,889 272,725 32,343 305,068
Liabilities 78,804 67 78,871 106,636 59 106,695
Fixed assets
capital expenditure - 434 434 58 350 408
Depreciation 144 12 156 164 28 192
The Group’s two main business segments operate within the United Kingdom
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
2010 2009
£000 £000
The operating profit 1s stated after charging
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 156 192
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 2
Auditors’ remuneration
- the audt of the parent company and
consolidated fimancial statements 36 33
— the audit of the company’s subsidiaries
pursuant to legislation 12 12
— tor other services 9 9
operating expenses for investment properties 298 283
And after crediting
— net rental income 9,126 8,914
- admunistrative charges to related
comparues {Note 25) 30 63
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L
'; 7 STAFF COSTS (including Directors)
v 2010 2009
1 £000 £000
E
W Wages and salaries 2,373 2,171
Social security costs 288 272
;— Pension costs 98 85
N 2,759 2,528
1 ——— —
E
5 2010 2009
p Directors’ Remuneration £000 £000
L Total Directors’ Remuneration including
C salary, bonuses, benefits in kind and
pension contributions amounted to 1,627 1,490
The details of Directors’ Remuneration are shown in the audited section of the Remuneration
Report on page 17
The Company contributes 3% of the total annual gross salanes and bonuses of each employee
to a Stakeholder Pension Scheme
The average monthly number of employees during the year was as follows
2010 2009
Office and management 27 27
8 FINANCE COSTS
2010 2009
£000 £000
Enterest on bank overdrafts, and loans 3,347 5,906
9, INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
2010 2009
£000 £000
Interest on bank deposits - 3
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2010 2009
£000 £000
(a) Analysis of charge in the year
Current tax
UK Corporation Tax 28%
(2005 28%) 7,969 4,864
Deferred tax
Current year 28% (2009 28%) (349) {1,191)
Taxaton attributable to the Company and
its Subsidiaries 7,620 3,673
{b) Factors affecting income tax expense
The charge for the year can be reconciled to
the profit per the income statement as follows
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 29,255 13,062
Profit on ordmary activities mulhplied
by rate of tax 28% (2009 28%) 8,191 3,657
Expenses not deductible for tax 58 73
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 24 k)|
Taxation on capital gains 309 189
Margnal relief (5) (5)
Revaluation surplus in subsidiaries not taxed (599) 899
Deferred tax (349) (1,191)
Sundry adjusting items 9 20
Taxabion attrnibutable to the Company and its Subsidiaries 7,620 3,673

DIVIDENDS

On 17 August 2009 a dividend of 105 per share (2008 105p per share) was paid to the
shareholders On 29 March 2010 a dividend of 50p per share (2009 50p per share) was paid
to the shareholders This resulted 1n total dividends paid in the vear of £6 042 million
{2009 £6 042 mulhion}

In respect of the current year, the Directors propose that a final dividend of 115p per share will
be paid to the shareholders on 16 August 2010 This dividend 1s subject to approval by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a hability 1n these
financial statements

The proposed final dividend for 2010 1s payable to all shareholders on the Register of Members
on 16 July 2010 The total estmated final dividend to be paid 15 £6 47 miihon
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

2010 2009

£000 £000
The calculahions of earrungs per share are based on the
following profits and number of shares
Net profit for financial year (basic and fully diluted) 21,635 9,389
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for basic and fully diluted earnings per share 3,899,014 3,899,014
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share 554 8p 241 0p
The Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares

13  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Freehold Fixtures Motor Computer
Property & Fithings Vehicles Equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000 ‘

COST
At 1 Aprl 2008 2,671 272 347 173 3,463
Additions - 17 41 - 58
Disposals - - (35) - (35)
At 31 March 2009 2,671 289 353 173 3,486
DEPRECIATION
At 1 Apri 2008 383 189 101 71 744
Charge for the year 53 48 54 37 192
On disposals - - (17) - (17)
At 31 March 2009 436 237 138 108 919
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2008 2,288 83 246 102 2,719
At 31 March 2009 2,235 52 215 65 2,567

Property, Plant and Equipment are located within Urited Kingdom
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13  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) ;
v
Freehold Fixtures Motor Computer 1
Property & Fithings  Vehicles Equipment Total E
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 W
COsST X
At 1 Apnl 2009 2,671 289 353 173 3,486 ;
Additions - 1 - - 11 T
Disposals - {218) - (42) (260) A
-
At 31 March 2010 2,671 82 353 131 3,237 5
DEPRECIATION
At1 April 2009 436 237 138 108 919 [I_’
Charge for the year 533 27 43 3 156 c
On disposals - {218) - (42) (260}
At 31 March 2010 489 46 181 99 815
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2009 2,235 52 215 65 2,567
At 31 March 2010 2,182 36 172 32 2,422
Property, Plant and Equipment are located within United Kingdom
14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2010 2009
£000 £000
Fair Value at 1 April 2009 (2008) 32,195 36,203
Additions
Subsequent expenditure 434 350
Disposals (1,899) (1,148)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Fair Value dunng the year 2,142 (3,210)
At 31 March 2010 (2009) 32,872 32,195

Lowse Goodwin Limited and ALG Properties Limited

The Comparues’ investment properties were valued on a Fair Value basis as at 31 March 2010 by
External Valuers, Mr F Full MRICS and Mr J A Rellings MRICS of Castles Surveyors Limited
The valuatiens were in aceordance with the requirements of the RICS Valuation Standards Manual,
Sixth Edition (The Red Book) and International Accounting Standard 40 The valuation of each
investment property assumed that the property would be sold subject to any existing leases,
regulated and assured tenancies, but otherwise, with vacant possession On this basis, the
aggregate Fair Value of the Company’s interests in 1ts investment properties was

Lowuse Goodwin Limited
£26,712,500 (twenty six million, seven hundred and twelve thousand five hundred pounds)

ALG Properties Linuted
£6,159,000 (s1x rrullion, one hundred and fifty rune thousand pounds)

Information relating to the basis of valuation of investment properties and the judgements and
assumphon adopted by management 1s set out in note 2(u) “Estimates and Judgements”

A revaluation surplus of £2 142 mullion has arisen on valuation of investment properties to fair
value as at 31 March 2010 (2009 deficit of £3 21 million) and this has been taken to the
income statement




36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(\3‘ for the year ended 31 March 2010
L
N 15 INVESTMENTS
v Fixed Asset Investments
é These represent the cost of shares in the following wholly owned Subsidiary undertakings,
W which are incorporated and operate 1n England and Wales Therr results are consolidated in the
accounts of the Group, for the period during which they are Subsidiary undertakings
E Principal Activity Cost
E; 2009
A 2010
T £000
L
® Hurstway Investment Company Limited  Property Dealing 1
P Lowse Goodwin Limited Property Investment 15,351
L
C A LG Properties Limited Property Investment 2,924
18,276
16 INVENTORIES
2010 2009
£000 £000
Restdential properties 256,964 268,806
17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2010 2009
£000 £000
Trade recervables 131 283
Prepayments and accrued income 1,066 377
1,197 660
The Duirectors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recervables approximates
their fair value
There are no bad or doubtful debts at the year end There are no material debts past due, and
there are no finanaal assets that are impaired
18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2010 2009
£000 £000
Trade creditors 855 949
Other taxes and social security costs 142 145
Cther creditors 358 961
1355 2,055

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their
fair value
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19 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND LOANS ?
2010 2009 ¢
£000 £000 1
E
Bank overdrafts 8,701 12,051 w
Bank loans 65,000 88,000
Other loans 175 975 '51
73,876 101,026 :
—— S T
(a) Cash and cash equivalents F
2010 2009 5
£000 £000 p
Bank overdrafts (8,701) (12,051) &
Cash 443 840
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March (8,258) (11,211)

_—

Matunty profile of financial rabilities at 31 March 2010 was as follows

Amounts repayable

In one year or less

Between one and two years
Between two and five years

Less amount due for settlement within 12 months
(shown under current habilities)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months

The average interest rates paid were as follows

Bank overdrafts
Bank loans
QOther loans

2010 2009
£000 £000
8,876 13,026
65,000 88,000
73,876 101,026
8,876 13,026
65,000 88,000
2010 2009
212% 504%
397% 507%
100% 411%
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BANK OVERDRAFTS AND LOANS {confinued)

The Drrectors consider that the carrying amount of bank overdrafts and loans approximates
their fair value

The other principal features of the Group’s borrowings are as follows

1

The Group has successfully renegotiated 1ts £22 mullion short-term borrowing facilittes
with Barclays Bank. Thus facility expires at September 2010 and the rate of interest payable
15

¢ 15% over LIBOR on £17 million
* 17% over Base rate on £5 milhon
Headroom of this facihty at 31 March 2010 amounted to £16 9 mullion (2009 £17 2 mullion)

The bank overdrafts are repayable on demand The bank overdrafts are secured by a
Letter of Negative Pledge by Mountview Estates PL C

The Group has successfully renegotated its £75 milhon leng-term borrowing facility with
Barclays Bank This1s a 5 year revolving loan and the new terrmination date of this facihity
1s November 2014 The rate of interest payable on the loan 15 1 8% above LIBOR The loan
15 secured by a cross guarantee between Mountview Estates PL C and 1its subsidiaries
The loan 1s not repayable by mstalments Headroom of this facihity at 31 March 2010
amounted to £30 milhon (2009 £7 million)

The Group has successfully renegotiated its £10 mullion short-term borrowing facilities
with HSBC Bank Thus facility expires at August 2010 and the rate of interest payable 1s
2 5% over Base rate Headroom of this facility at 31 March 2010 amounted to £6 3 million
(2009 £2 6 million)

The Group has successfully renegotiated its £20 nullion long-term borrowing facility with
HSBC Bank This 1s a 5 year revolving loan and the new termination date of this facility
15 January 2015 The rate of interest payable on the loan 1s 2 5% above LIBOR The loan is
secured by Letter of Negative Pledge The loan 1s not repayable by instalments Headroom
of thus facility at 31 March 2010 amounted to £ml (2009 £rul)

Other loans consist of loans from connected persons, and companies of which Mr DM
Sinclair 15 a Director Loans of £175,000 {2009 £975,000) are repayable within one year
Interest payable on these loans 1s at 0 5% above Barclays Bank Plc base rate
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20 DEFERRED TAX N
Analysis for financial reporting purposes v
2010 2009 H
£000 £000 w
Deferred tax habilities 8,157 8,506 k
]
Net posttion at 31 March 8,157 8,508 T
—_— A
T
The movement for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax position was as follows I;
2010 2009
£000 £000 P
c
At1 Aprl 8,506 9,697
(Credit) to income for the year (349) (1,191)
At 31 March 8,157 8,506
The following are 1n deferred tax liabihties recogrused by the Group and movements thereon
during the penod
Revaluahion of properties
2010 2009
£000 £000
At1Apnl 8,506 9,697
(Credit) to income for the year (349) (1,191}
At 31 March 8,157 8,506
21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value of financial assets

The Group's financial assets at the year end consist of trade recervables and cash at bank and 1
hand of £1 6 milhon (2009 £1 5 mullion)

The Directors consider that the carrymg amount of cash at bank and 1n hand approximates their
fair value

The trade receivables amounted to £1 19 mallion (2009 £660,000)

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade receivables approximates their

fair value

Fair value of borrowings

2010 2009

£000 £000

Bank overdrafts 8,701 12,051
Secured bank loans 65,000 88,000
Unsecured loans 175 975
73,876 101,026




40 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g for the year ended 31 March 2010
L
';' 21  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
v Interest charged 1n the income statement for the above borrowings amounted to £3 3 miilion
é (2009 £59 mullion)}
w The Directors consider that the carrying amount of borrowings approximates ther fair value
The details of the terms of the borrowings together with the average mterest rates can be seen
*51 in Note 19
T As at 31 March 2010 1t 1s estimated that general increase of 1 pont in interest rates would
? decrease the Group’s profit before tax by approximately £250,000 (2009 £480,000)
E Derivative financial instruments
The Group has entered 1into an Interest Rate Swap Agreement in January 2008 in order to help
P manage its interest rate risk
(IE The interest rate swap matures i March 2013 and 1s based on £40 million non-amortising

notional amount As at 31 March 2010 the fixed interest rate was 4 98% (31 March 2009 4 98%)

As at 31 March 2010 the fair value of derivatives under 1AS 39 15 a charge of £3 6 million
(2004 charge £3 6 million)

The interest rate swap was valued by Brewin Dolphin Investment Banking, a division of Brewin
Dolphin Limuted

Undiseounted matunty profile of financial hiabilities

The following table analyses the Group's financial iabilities and denvative financial habilities
at the balance sheet date into relevant matunty groupings based on the remainung period to the
contractual maturnity date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows As the amounts included n the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows,
these amounts will not always equal the amounts disclosed on the balance sheet for borrowings,
denvative financial instruments, and trade and other payables A reconcthation to the balance
sheet amounts 15 given on page 37

Trade and other payables due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of
discounting 15 not sigruficant

Less than Between

lyear 1 & Syears Total
At 31 March 2010 £000 £000 £000
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 9,155 81,058 90,213
Cash flow hedges 3,640 - 3,640
Trade and other payables 1,355 - 1,355
Less than Between
1year 1& Syears Total
At 31 March 2009 £000 £000 £000

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 13,903 103,684 117,587
Cash flow hedges 3,614 - 3,614
Trade and other payables 2,055 - 2,055
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21  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) N
Reconciliation of matunty analysis T
Less than  Between E
1year 1 & 5years Total w
At 31 March 2010 £000 £ 000 £000
E
Interest bearing ioans and borrowings 2
per accounts 8,876 65,000 73,876 A
Interest 279 16,058 16,337 r
E
Financial iability cash flows as above 9,155 81,058 90,213 5
P
Less than  Between E
1year 1 & Syears Total
At 31 March 2009 £000 £ 000 £000
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
per accounts 13,026 88,000 101,026
Interest 877 15,684 16,561
Financial habihty cash flows as above 13,903 103,684 117,587
22  CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
2010 2009
£000 £000
Authorised
5,000,000 ordinary shares of 5p each 250 250
Allotted, 15sued and fully paid
3,899,014 ordinary shares of 5p each 195 195
23 OTHER RESERVES
2010 2009
£000 £000
Capital redemption reserve 55 55
Capital reserve 25 25
Other reserves 56 56
136 136

Capital redemphion reserve relates to buy-back of the Company’s own shares

The Group does not maintam msurance cover agamnst other risks except where several properties
are located 1n close physical vicinity A reserve 1s maintained to deal with such non-insured risks
and at 31 March 2010 stood at £56,000 (2009 £56,000)
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25

RETAINED EARNINGS

£000

Balance at 1 April 2009 190,773

Net profit for the year 21,635
Drividends pard {6,042}

Balance at 31 March 2010 206,366

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1

2 (a)

(b)

(0)

(d)

(e)
()

During the financial year there were no key management personnel emoluments, other
than remuneration

Mountview Estates PL C provides general management and admirnustration services to
Ossian Investors Limited and Sinclair Estates Limited, comparues of which Mr DM
Sinclair 1s a Director Fees of £30,237 (2009 £45,130) were charged for these services

Included within other loans repayable in less than one year and on demand 1s a loan
from Sinclair Estates Limited The balance outstanding at the balance sheet date
was £rul (2009 £700,000) Interest was payable on the loan at a rate of 0 5 percent above
Barclays Bank Plc base rate Interest paid in the year on this loan amounted to £504
(2009 £22,608)

Included within other loans repayable 1n less than one year and on demand 1s a
loan from Ossian Investors Limited The balance outstanding at the balance sheet
date was £rul (2009 £100,000) Interest was payable on the loan at a rate of 0 5 percent
above Barclays Bank Ple base rate Interest paid in the year on this loan amounted to
£240 (2009 £5,466)

Included within other loans, repayable m less than one year and on demand 15 a loan
from Mrs D Sinclarr, a shareholder of the Company The balance outstanding at the
balance sheet date was £175,000 (2009 £175,000} Interest was payable on the loan at a
rate of 0 5 percent above Barclays Bank Plc base rate Interest paid i the year on this
lcan amounted to £1,470 (2009 £8,256)

All of the above loans are unsecured

‘Transachons between the Group and 1ts Subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been
eliminated on consohidation and have not been disclosed 1n this note




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

=
W

to the Members of Mountview Estates PL C

We have audited the Group financial statements of Mountview Estates PL C for the year ended
31 March 2010, which comprise the consohidated income statement, the consohidated statement of
comprehensive mcome, the consolhidated statement of financial position, the consolidated statement
of changes 1n equity, the statement of consolidated cash flows and the related notes 1 t0 25 The financial
reporting framework that has been apphed in their preparahon 1s applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS’} as adopted by the Europeart Uruon

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

As explamed more fully in the statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out in the Directors’ Report,
the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 15 to audit the Group financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethucal Standards for Auditors

This report, mcluding the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a
body m accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparues Act 2006 and for no other purpose We
do not, in giving these opimuons, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent in writing

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1 the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial staternents are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are
appropnate to the Group’s arcumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,
the reasonableness of sigruficant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financral statements

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our opinion the Group financial statements

®  giveatrue and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 March 2010 and of 1ts profit for
the year then ended,

®  have been properly prepared m accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union, and

®  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparues Act 2006 and Article
4 of the JAS Regulation

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opiruon the information given m the Directors’ Report for the finanaal year for which the Group
financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with the Group financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following Under the Comparues Act 2006 we are required
to report to you if, in our opiruon

e certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration speaified by law are not made, or

®  we have not received all the information and explanations we requitre for our audit
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

e  the Directors’ statement 1n relation to going concem, and

¢  the part of the Corporate Governance report relating to the Company’s compitance with the mine
provisions of the June 2008 Combimed Code speaified for our review
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

to the Members of Mountuview Estates PL C

OTHER MATTER

We have reported separately on the parent Company financial statements of Mountview Estates PL C
for the year ended 31 March 2010 and on the information in the Report of the Remuneration commttee
and Directors’ Remuneration Report that 15 descnbed as having been audited

Norman Strong (Seruor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of BSG Valentine

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audators
London

15 July 2010




COMPANY BALANCE SHEET UNDER UK GAAP 45
as at 31 March 2010 E’)‘
L
As at As at ‘.F
31 03 2010 3103 2009 v
Notes £000 £000 I
FIXED ASSETS E
W
Tangible assets 3 2,392 2,534
Investments 4 18,276 18,276 ;
20,668 20,810 :
-
E
CURRENT ASSETS 5
Stocks 5 243,860 255,554 {
Debtors 6 1,124 573 c
Cash at bank and in hand 319 706
245,303 256,833
CREDITORS Amounts falling
due within one year 7 (17,101) (20,650)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 228,202 236,183
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 248,870 256,993
CREDITORS Amounts falling due
after more than one year 8 (90,200) (109,221)
158,670 147,772
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 9 195 195
Capital redemption reserve 10 55 55
Capital reserve 10 25 25
Other reserves 10 39 39
Cash flow hedge reserve 11 (3,640) (3,614)
Profit and Loss Account 12 161,996 151,072
158,670 147,772

Apprgved by the Bo rd on 15 July 2010
' . M—’MW
-

SINCLAIR Chalrman K LANGRISH-SMITH Director
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U
N 1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
v
1 (a)  Basis of Accounting
E The Accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention, and in
w accordance with applicable Accounting Standards
b {b) Investments
? Fixed assets investments in Subsidiary undertakings are stated at costs less any proviston
A for impairment
T
E {0 Taxation
> Corporation tax payable 1s provided on taxable profits at the current rate
E {(d) Turnover
é Turnover includes proceeds of sales of properties, rents from properties which are held
as trading stock, or investment and any other sundry 1tems of revenue before charging
expenses Sales of properties are recogrused on completion
(e)  Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of an asset, less 1ts estimated residual
value, over the useful econormuc life of that asset using the straight-line method as follows
Freehold property - 2%
Fixtures and fithings and office equipment - 20%
Computer equipment - 25%
Motor Vehicles - reducing balance method - 20%
(f)  Impairment of Fixed Assets
Fixed Assets are subject to review for impairment in accordance with FRS11 “Impairment
of Fixed Assets and Goodwill” Any impairment 1s recognised in the Profit and Loss
Account in the year in which 1t occurs
(g) Stocks
These comprise residential properties all of which are held for resale, and are valued at
the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value Cost to the Group includes legal fees
and commusston charges incurred during acquisition together with improvement costs
Netrealisable value 1s the net sale proceeds which the Group expects on sale of a property
with vacant possession in ats current condition The properties prices have stabilised and
improved over the last twelve months, in view of this and based on the results of sales
made during the financial year the Directors do not consider that any stock wnite down
1s necessary The analysis of the Group revenue as at 31 March 2010 1s on page 30
(h)  Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s recogrused in respect of all iming dufferences that have onginated but not
reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions or events have occurred at that date
that will result in an obligation to pay more, or right to pay less or to recerve more, tax,
with the followmg exceptions

¢ provision 1s made for tax on gains arsing from the revaluations (and simuilar fair value
adjustments) of fixed assets, and gains on disposal of fixed assets that have been rolled
over into replacement assets, only to the extent that, at balance sheet date, there 15
binding agreement to dispose of these assets concerned However, no provision 1s
made where, on the basis of all available evidence at the balance sheet date, 1t 1s more
likely than not that the taxable gam will be rolled over into replacement assets and
charged to tax only where the replacement assets are sold,

® deferred tax assets are recogrused only to the extent that the directors consider that it
15 more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future
reversal of the underlying tmung differences can be deducted
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v
STAFF COSTS (including Directors) =
2010 2009 v
£000 £000 I
E
Wages and salanes 2,373 2171 w
Social security costs 288 272 ]
Pension costs 98 85 g—
2,759 2,528 1
—_— ——— T
L
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION S
2010 2009
£000 £000 E
Total Directors” Remuneration including c
salary, bonuses, benefits in kind and
penstons contributions amounted to 1,627 1,490

The details of Directors’” Remuneration are shown in the audited section of the Remuneration
Report on page 17

The Company contributes 3% of the total annual gross salaries and bonuses of each employee
to a Stakeholder Pension Scheme

The average monthly number of employees during the year was as follows

2010 2009
Office and management 27 27
TANGIBLE ASSETS
Freehold Fixtures Motor Computer
Property & Fittings  Vehicles Equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
COST
At1Apnl 2008 2,671 98 347 173 3,289
Additions - 3 41 - 44
Disposals - - (35) - (35)
At 31 March 2009 2,671 101 353 173 3,298
DEPRECIATION
At 1 Apnl 2008 383 62 101 71 617
Charge for the year 53 20 54 37 164
On disposals - - {17) - (17)
At 31 March 2009 436 82 138 108 764
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2008 2,288 36 246 102 2,672
At 31 March 2009 2,235 19 215 65 2,534

All tangible assets of the Company are located within the Urnuted Kingdom
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L
11\_ 3 TANGIBLE ASSETS (contunued)
Y Freehold Fixtures Moter Computer
E Property & Fittings  Vehicles Equipment Total
w £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
COST
E At Apnl 2009 2,671 101 353 173 3,298
5 Addihons - - - - -
N Disposals - (78) - (42) (120)
T
E At 31 March 2010 2,671 23 353 131 3,178
5
DEPRECIATION
P At1 April 2009 436 82 138 108 764
h Charge for the year 53 13 43 33 142
On disposals - {78) - (42) (120)
At 31 March 2010 489 17 181 99 786
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2009 2,235 19 215 65 2,534
At 31 March 2010 2,182 6 172 32 2,392
All tangible assets of the Company are located within the United Kingdom
4 INVESTMENTS

Fixed Asset Investments

These represent the cost of shares in the following wholly owned Subsidiary undertakings,
which are incorporated and operate in England and Wales Their results are consolidated in the

accounts of the Group, for the peried during which they are Subsidiary undertakings

Cost
2009
2010
£000
Hurstway Investment Company Limuted 1
Lowse Goodwin Limited 15,351
A LG Properties Limited 2,924
18,276

The Company owns 100% of the ordinary share capital of the followmg companies
Subsidiary Undertaking Country of Principal
Incorporation Activity
Hurstway Investment Company Limited UK Property Dealing

Lowmse Goodwin Limited UK Property Investment

A L G Properties Lumited UK Property Investment
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L
STOCKS “r
2010 2009 v
£000 £000 i
E
Residential properties 243,860 255,554 i
k
5
DEBTORS due within one year r
2010 2009 A
£000 £000 ;
Trade debtors 93 217 i
Prepayments and accrued income 1,031 356 P
L
1,124 573 C
CREDITORS Amounts falling due within one year
2010 2009
£000 £000
Bank loans and overdrafts 8,701 12,051
Trade creditors 497 949
Corporation Tax 3,295 2,025
Other taxes and social security costs 127 145
Other creditors 666 891
Other loans 175 975
Denvative financial instruments 3,640 3,614
17,101 20,650

Other loans consist of loans from connected persons Interest payable on these loans was at 0 5%
above Barclays Bank Plc Base rate

CREDITORS Amounts falling due after more than one year

2010 2009
£000 £000
Bank loans 65,000 88,000
Amounts owed to Subsidiary undertakings 25,200 21,221

Other loans - -

90,200 109,221
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'\r 8 CREDITORS Amounts falling due after more than one year {continued)
v
é Maturity profile of financial habilities at 31 March 2010 was as follows
W
2010 2009
b £000 £000
5 Amounts repayable
T In one year or less 8,876 13,026
? Between one and two years ~ -
E Between two and five years 65,000 88,000
5 More than five years 25,200 21,221
P 99,076 122,247
L Less amount due for settlement within 12 months
< (shown under current labilihes) 8,876 13,026
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 90,200 109,221

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of bank overdrafts and loans approximates
their fair value

The other principal features of the Group's borrowings are as follows

1

The Group has successfully renegotiated 1ts £22 milhon short-term borrowing facihties
with Barclays Bank This faciity expires at September 2010 and the rate of mterest
payable 15

* 15% over LIBOCR or £17 mullion

* 17% over Base rate or £5 milfion
Headroom of thus faality at 31 March 2010 amounted to £16 9 mullion (2009 £17 2 rrullion)

The Group has successfully renegotiated its £75 mullion long-term borrowing facility with
Barclays Bank This1sa 5 year revolving loan and the new termination date of thus facility
15 November 2014 The rate of interest payable on the loan is 1 8% above LIBOR The loan
15 secured by a cross guarantee between Mountview Estates PL C and its subsidiaries
The 1oan 15 not repayable by instalments Headroom of this facihity at 31 March 2010
amounted to £30 million (2009 £7 rmullion)

The Group has successfully renegotiated its £10 million short-term borrowing facilities
with HSBC Bank. This facihity expires at August 2010 and the rate of mterest payable 15
2 5% over Base rate Headroom of thus facihity at 31 March 2010 amounted to £6 3 nulhion
(2009 £2 6 million)

The Group has successfully renegohated its £20 milhion long-term borrowing facility wath
HSBC Bank This 1s a 5 year revolving loan and the new termination date of this facility
15 Janary 2015 The rate of interest payable on the loan 15 2 5% above LIBOR The loan1s
secured by Letter of Negative Pledge The toan 1s not repayable by mstalments Headroom
of thus facility at 31 March 2010 amounted to £rul (2009 £rut)

Other loans consist of loans from connected persons, and companues of which Mr DM
Sinclair 15 a Director Loans of £175,000 (2009 £975,000} are repayable within one year
Interest payable on these loans 15 at 0 5% above Barclays Bank Plc base rate




Balance at 31 March 161,996 151,072
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L
9 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL $
2010 2009 v
£000 £000 I
E
Authonsed "
5,000,000 ordinary shares of 5p each 250 250
e——— g — E
Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid ?
3,899,014 ordinary shares of 5p each 195 195 A
—_— — 1
E
10 OTHER RESERVES °
2010 2009 .
£000 £000 L
C
Caprtal redemption reserve 55 55
Capital reserve 25 25
Other reserves 39 39
Balance at 31 March 119 119
Capital redemption reserve relates to buy-back of the Company’s own shares
The Group does not maintam msurance cover against other risks except where several properties
are located m close physical vicinity A reserve 1s mamntained to deal with such non-insured risks
and at 31 March 2010 stood at £39,000 (2009 £39,000)
11 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company entered into an Interest Rate Swap Agreement in January 2008 m order to help
manage Its interest rate nisk
The interest rate swap matures in March 2013 and 1s based on £40 million non-amortising
notional amount As at 31 March 2010 the fixed interest rate was 4 98% (March 2009 4 98%)
12 PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
2010 2009
£000 £000
Balance at 1 April 151,072 147,313
Net profit for the year 16,966 9,801
Dividends paid (6,042) {(6,042)
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for the year ended 31 March 2010
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1

2 (a)

(b}

()

(d)

(e}
()

Durmng the financial year there were no key management personnel emoluments, other
than remuneration

Mountview Estates PL C provides general management and administration services to
Ossian Investors Limited and Sinclair Estates Limited, compames of which Mr DM
Sinclair 1s a Director Fees of £30,237 (2009 £45,130) were charged for these services

Included within other loans tepayable 1n less than one year and on demand 15 a loan
from Sinclair Estates Limited The balance outstanding at the balance sheet date was
£ml (2009 £700,000) Interest was payable on the loan at a rate of 0 5 percent above
Barclays Bank Plc base rate Interest paid in the year on this loan amounted to
£240 (2009 £22,605)

Included within other loans repayable m less than one year and on demand s a
loan from Ossian Investors Limited The balance outstanding at the balance sheet date
was £rul (2009 £100,000) Interest was payable on the loan at arate of 0 5 percent above
Barclays Bank Plc base rate Interest paid in the year on this loan amounted to £540
(2009 £5,466)

Included within other loans, repayable 1n less than one year and on demand 1s a loan
from Mrs D Sinclar, a sharehelder of the Company The balance outstanding at the
balance sheet date was £175,000 (2009 £175,000) Interest was payable on the loan at a
rate of 0 5 percent above Barclays Bank Plc base rate Interest paid in the year on this
loan amounted to £1,470 (2009 £8,256}

All of the above loans are unsecured

Transactions between the Group and 1ts Substdianes, which are related parties, have been
elimiated on consolidation and have not been disclosed 1n this note
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E INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

to the Members of Mountvtew Estates PL C on the parent company financial statements

We have audited the parent Company finanaal statements of Mountview Estates PL C for the year ended
31 March 2010 which comprise the parent company balance sheet and the related notes 110 13 The finanaal
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s apphcable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

As explamned more fully in the statement of Directers’ responsibilihes set out 1n the Dhrectors’ Report, the
Directors are responsible for the preparation of the parent Company financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 15 to audit the parent Company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors This
report, including the opimons, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance wath Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparues Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do nat, in giving
these opimions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent tn wnhing

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financal statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the finanaal statements are free from matenal misstaternent, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the parent
Company’s arcumstances and have been consistently apphed and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of
significant accounting eshmates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the fimancial statements

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our opinion the parent Company financial statements

e Give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2010 and of its profit for the
year ended,

» Have been properly prepared in accordance with Unuted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and

» Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparues Act 2006

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opiuon

* The part of the report of the Remuneration Commuttee and Directors” Remuneration report to be audited
has been propetly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and

* The information given in the Directors’ Report for the finanaal year for which the parent Company finanaial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the parent Company financial statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REFORT BY EXCEPTION
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Comparues Act 2006 requires us to
repott to you if, in our opinion

* Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been recerved from branches not visited by us, or

* The parent Company financal staternents and the part of the Directors” Remuneration Report to be audited
are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

» Certain disclosures of Directors” Remuneration spectfied by law are not made, or

» We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit
Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

s the Directors’ statement, in relabon to going concern, and

» the part of the corporate Governance report relating to the Company’s comphance with the nine provisions
of the June 2008 Combined Code specified for our review

OTHER MATTER

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Mountview Estates PL C for the year
ended 31 March 2010

Norman Strong (Sentor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of BSG Valentine
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London
15 July 2010 %g F;f /AQMD\




54 TABLE OF COMPARATIVE FIGURES
3 as at 31 March 2010
L
N IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS
I, 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
1 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
E
" Revenue 48,778 47,456 68,168 54,338 53,599 56,697
g Profit before taxation 24,848 22,660 50,227 29,529 13,062 29,255
N Taxation 7,482 6,738 15,167 8,861 3,673 7,620
)
E Profit after taxation 17,366 15,922 35,060 20,668 9,389 21,635
Dividend 1n relation
E to the year 4,913 5,069 5,848 6 (042 6042 6,433"
C
Earmungs per share 445 4p 408 4p 899 2p 5301p 2410p 554 8p
Rate of dividend 126p 130p 150p 155p 155p 165p

*The £6 43 rmullion dividend 1 relation to 2010 13 made up of the interim dividend of £1 95 milhon and

the final dividend of £4 48 million, which will be paid on 16 August 2010, subject to approval at the

AGM on 11 August 2010




SUMMARY OF THE PROPOSED CHANGES

o
wun

to the Company’s Articles of Associatton

It 15 proposed m resolution 8 to adopt the new Articles of Association m order to update the Company’s
current Articles of Association to take account of the comuing into force of the Companies {Shareholders’
Rights) Regulations 2009 (the Shareholders’ Rights Regulations}, the implementation of the last parts
of the Comparnues Act 2006 and to reflect current market practice

The changes introduced in the new Articles of Association which we consider will be of most interest
to sharehclders are summansed below Other changes, which are of a minor, technucal or clarifying
nature, or conform the language of the new Articles of Association with that of the Compames Act
2006, have not been noted A copy of the new Articles of Association showing all the changes to the
Company’s current Articles of Association are available for mspection, as noted on page 59

Authority to purchase own shares, consolidate and sub divide shares, and reduce share capital

Under the Companies Act 1985 a company required specific enabling provisions in its Articles of
Association to purchase its own shares, to consolidate to sub-divide it shares and to reduce its share
capital or other undistnibutable reserves as well as members’ authonty to undertake the relevant action
The current Articles of Associabion include these enabling provisions Under the Comparues Act 2006,
a company only requires members” authority to do any of these things and 1t will no longer be necessary
for Articles of Association to contain enabling provisions Amendments have been made to the new
Articles of Assoctation to reflect these changes

Proceedings of general meetings

The new Articles of Association have been updated to allow for a number of adminustrative provisions
relating to general meetings of the Company In particular, under the new Articles of Association, the
board may enable persons entitled to attend a general meeting to do so by simultaneous attendance
and participation at a satellite meeting place or elsewhere provided certain condibons {such that
members attending 1n all meeting places can hear and see all persons who speak in the principal
meeting place and any satellite meeting place) are met

Adjournments

The Shareholders’ Rights Regulations have amended the Comparues Act 2006 to require meetings
adjourned for lack of quorum be held at least 10 clear days after the origmal meeting The new Articles
of Association reflect this requirement

Chairman’s casting vote

The new Articles of Association do not contain a provision giving the chairrman a casting vote 1n the
event of an equahty of votes as this 1s no longer permitted under the Companies Act 2006

Voting by proxies on a show of hands

The Shareholders’ Rights Regulations amended the Comparues Act 2006 to clanify the rules that apply
when a member’s proxy casts votes for different shares in different ways On a vote on a show of hands,
every proxy present who has been duly appointed by one or more members entitled to vote on the
resolution has one vote, but the proxy has one vote for and one vete against the resolution if

« the proxy has been duly appointed by more than one member entitled to vote on the
resolution, and

s the proxy has been instructed by one or more members to vote for the resolution and by other
members to vote against it

The new Articles of Association have been amended to reflect these changes

Voling by corporate representatives

The Shareholders’ Rights Regulations have amended the Compares Act 2006 in order to enable
multiple representatives appointed by the same corporate member to vote in different ways on a
show of hands and a poll The new Articles of Association contain provisions which reflect
these amendments
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to the Company’s Articles of Assoctation

Proxy appointments, terminations and instructions

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, the new Arhcles of Asscciation have
also been updated to provide that where a proxy has been appomnted by a person on behalf of a
member, the Company may treat the appomntment of a proxy as sufficient authority for that
appointment Inaddition, the new Articles of Association provide that for the appointment to be vald,
a member must provide reasonable evidence of the authority under which the appointment was made
if requested to do so by the Company Proxy appointments shall be executed in such manner as the
Company may approve

The new Articles of Assoaation clarify the positton when two or more valid proxy appointments are
recerved 1n respect of the same share for use at the same meeting and provides that the one that was
last recerved shall be treated as replacing the others If the Company determines that 1t has insufficient
evidence to decide whether or not a proxy appointment 1s in respect of the same share, it shall be
entrtled to determume which proxy appointment (if any) 1s to be treated as vahd

The new Articles of Association have also been amended to reflect that, under the Companies Act 2006,
weekends and bank hohdays can be excluded from the calculation of the 48 hour notice period to
appoint proxies, at the discretion of the Directors

In addition, proxies have a statutory duty to vote in accordance with instructions given to them by
their appointing member The new Articles of Association provide that the Company 15 not required
to enquure whether a proxy (or corporate representative) has voted in accordance with instructions
and votes cast will be vahd even if they have not been cast in accordance with the instructions provided
by the appointing member

Use of seals

Under the Comparues Act 1985, a company could have an official seal for use abroad only 1if its Articles
of Associahon gave authonity Under the Comparues Act 2006, such authority 15 no longer required
and has been removed from the new Articles of Association

Voting record date

The Shareholders” Rights Regulations have amended the Comparues Act 2006 to require a company
to determine the night of members to vote at a general meeting by reference to the register not more
than 48 hours before the time for the holding of the meehng, 1gnoring days which are not working
days The new Articles of Association reflect this requirement

Records to be kept

The provision in the current Articles of Association requiring the Directors to keep accounting records
has been removed as this requirement 1s contaned 1n the Comparnes Act 2006

Redeemable Shares

Under the Comparues Act 2006, the Articles of Association need not include the terms on which
redeemable shares may be redeemed, and enables the Directors to deterrmune the terms, conditions and
manner of redemption, provided they are authonised to do 5o by the Articles of Association The new
Articles of Association contain such authorisation The Company has no plans to 1ssue redeemable
shares but if 1t did so the Directors would need Shareholders’ authority to 1ssue new shares and would
set out the proposed basis of redemption at that time

Closing of register of members

Under the Comparues Act 2006, companies are no longer able to close their register of members This
provision has been removed from the new Articles of Associabion




NOTICE OF MEETING 57
M
o
u
Notice 15 hereby given that the Seventy-Third Annual General Meeting of the Members of Mountview "F
Estates PL C (incorporated in England and Wales with registered number 00328020) will be held at the v
offices of Norton Rose L.LP, 3 More London Riverside, London SE1 2AQ on 11 August 2010 at 11 30am, I
for the following purposes E
w
As ordmary business
k
1 To receive and consider the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors and the audited 5
Statements of Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2010 ;
2 To declare a final dividend of 115p per share payable on 16 August 2010 to Shareholders on 1
the register at 16 July 2010 5
To re-appoint Mr DM Sinctarr as a Director of the Company
To re-appoint Mr K Langnsh-Smuth as a Director of the Company E
<

To approve the Directors” Remuneration Report set out in the Annual Report and Accounts for
the year ended 31 March 2010

6 To re-appomnt Messrs BSG Valentie as Auditors of the Company to hold office from the
conclusion of the Meeting to the conclusion of the next meeting at which the accounts are laid
before the meeting

7 To authorise the Directors to determmune the Audrtors’ remuneration for the ensuing year

As special busimess
8 To consider and, 1if thought fit, pass the following Special Resolution

THAT the Articles of Association produced to the Meeting and mutialled by the Chairman of
the Meeting for the purpose of identification to be adopted as the Articles of Associathion of the
Company 1 substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the existing Articles of Association

rm'
@qurder the Bogrd

MM BRA
Secretary

Mountview House
151 High Street
Southgate

London N14 6EW
16 July 2010
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Notes —

1

A Member who 15 entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting 15 entitled to appoint one or more proxtes to attend,
speak and vote mstead of hum/her A proxy need not also be a Member of the Company If a Member appoints more
than one proxy to attend the Meeting, each proxy must be appointed to exerase the nghts attached to a different
share or shares held by the Member If a Member wishes to appomnt more than one proxy and so requires additional
forms of Proxy, the Member should contact Caprta Registrars (PXS), The Regastry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,
Kent BR3 4TU

A form of Proxy 1s enclosed with thus Report and Accounts and should be completed in accordance with the
instructions contained therern Completion and return of the form of Proxy will not prevent a Member from attending
the Meeting and voting 1n person To be effecive, the form of Proxy and any power of attorney or other authonty
under whuch 1t 15 signed (or a notanally cernfied copy of such authonty) must be deposited at the office of the
Company’s Registrars, Capita Registrars (PXS), The Regnstry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU, not
later than 48 hours before the time of the Meeting or any adjournument thereof Amended instnzctions must also be
receved by the Company’s Registrars by the deadline for recerpt of Forms of Proxy

To appornt a proxy or to give or amend an mstruchon to a previously appomted proxy via the CREST system, the

message must be recerved by the 1ssuet’s agent RA10 by no later than 48 hours before the time of the Meeting
or any adjournment thereof For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determuned by the
tumestamp apphed to the message by the CREST Applications Host} from which the issuer’s agent 1s able to retrieve
the message After this hme any change of instructions to a proxy appointed through CREST should be
commumcated to the proxy by other means CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsored members, and
those CREST Members who have appointed voting service provider(s) should contact their CREST sponsor or voting
service provider(s) for assistance mtﬁzppomtng proxtes via CREST For further mformation on CREST procedures,
hmitations and system hmings please refer to the CREST Manual We may treat as invalid a proxy appomtment sent
by CREST 1n the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5) {a) of the Uncertificated Secunibes Regulations 2001 In
any case your proxy instruchon must be recerved by the company’s regastrars no later than 48 hours before the tme
of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof

Any person recerving a copy of this Noice as a person nomunated by a Member to enjoy information nghts under
section 146 of the Comparues Act 2006 (a “Nomunated Person”) should note that the provisions in Notes 1 and 2
above concerrung the appomntment of a proxy or proxes to attend the Meeting in place of a Member, do not apply
to a Nonunated Person as only shareholders have the nght to appomt a proxy IHowever, a Normnated Person may
have a nght under an agreement between the Normunated erson and the Member by whom he or she was nomunated
to be appointed, or to have someone else appointed, as a proxy for the Meehng If a Norrunated Person has no such
proxy appomtrnent nght or does not wish to exercise it, hefshe may have a nght under such an agreement to give
mstruchons to the Member as to the exerase of vohng nghts at the Meeting

Nominated persons should also remember that their main pont of contact 1n terms of thewr investment 1n the
Company remains the Member who nonunated the Nomunated Person to enjoy information nights (or, perhaps the
custodian or broker who adrrurusters the investment on their behalf) Nomunated Persons should continue to contact
that Member, custodian or broker (and not the Company) regarding any changes or quertes relating to the Nomsnated
Person’s personal details and mnterest in the Company (including any adrumstrative matter) The only exception to
ths 15 where the Company expressly requests a response from a Nonunated Person

Pursuant to Regulabion 41 of the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001 (as amended) and for the purposes of
Section 3608 of the Comparues Act 2006, entitlement to attend and vote at the Meehng and the number of votes
whuch may be cast thereat will be determined by reference to the register of members of the Company as at 11 30am
on the day whch 1s two days before the day of the Meeting (the “Specified Time”) or adjourned Meeting If the
Meeting 15 adjourned to a bme not more than 48 hours after the Speafied Time, that bme will also apply for the
purpose of determirung the entitlement of Members to attend and vote and for the purpose of determuning the
number of votes they may cast at the adjourned Meeting Changes to entries on the register of members after the
relevant deadline shall be disregarded 1n determmurung the rights of any person to attend and vote at the Meehing

Any corporabon which 15 a Member can appoint one or more corporate representabves who may exercise onits
behalf all of 1ts powers as a Member, provided that, if 1t 13 appombing more than one corporate representative, it
does not do so 1n relahon to the same shares It 15 therefore no longer necessary to nominate a designated
corporate representabve
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If the Chairman, as a result of any proxy appemtments, 15 given discretion as to how the votes the subject of those
proxies are cast and the voting nghts 1n respect of those discrebonary proxies, when added to the interests in the
Comgany's secunities already held by the Chairman, result in the Chairman holding such number of voting nghts
that he has a notthiable obligation under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, the Chairman wll make the
necessary notificabions to the Company and the Finanaal Services Authonty As a result, any Member holding 3%
or more of the voting nights in the Company who grants the Chairman a discrenonary proxy 1n respect of some or
all of those voting nghts and so would otherwise have a notificabon obhigation under the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules, need not make a separate notification to the Company and the Financial Services Authority

Under section 527 of the Comparues Act 2006, Members meeting the threshold requirements set out 1n that section
have the nght to requre the Company to publish on a website a statement seting out any matter relating to

{a) the audit of the Company’s accounts {including the auditor’s report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be
lard before the meeting, or

(b) any crrcumstance connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeaing
at which annual accounts and reports were laid in accordance with section 437 of the Comparues Act 2006

The Company may hot require the members requesting any such website publicahon te pay 1ts expenses mn
complymng with sections 527 or 528 Comparues Act 2006 Where the Company 15 requured to place a staterent on a
website under sechion 527 Compames Act 2006, 1t must forward the statement to the Company’s auditor not fater
than the bme when 1t makes the statement available on the website The business which may be dealt with at the
meehng includes any statement that the Company has been requured under section 527 Comparues Act 2006 to
pubbsh on a website

Any Member attending the Meehng has the nght to ask questions The Company must cause to be answered any
question relahng to the business being dealt wath at the Meeting put by a Member attending the Meehng However,
Members should note that no answer need be given in the following arcumstances

(a) 1f to do so would interfere unduly wath the preparation of the Meeting or would 1nvolve a disclosure of
confidential information,

{b) 1f the answer has already been given on a webstte n the form of an answer to a question, or
{(©) if 1t15 undesirable in the interests in the Company or the good order of the meeting that the question be answered

This Notice, together with information about the total numbers of shares in the Company n respect of which
Members are entitled to exercise voting nights at the Meehng as at 15 July 2010, being the last business day pnor to
the pnnting of this Notice and, 1f applicable, any members’ statements, members’ resolutions or members’ matters
of business receved by the Company aftet the date of this Nohce, will be available on the Company’s website
www mountviewplc co uk

Any electroruc address provided exther in this Notice or i any related documents (including the Form of Proxy)
may not be used to cormmuntcate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated

As at 15 July 2010, bemng the last business day prior to the prmting of this Nohice, the Company’s 1ssued capital
consisted of 3,809,014 Ordinary Shares carrying one vote each Therefore, the total voting nghts in the Company as
at 15 July 2010 are 3,899,014

Copres of the Directors” service contracts and a copy of the proposed new Articles of Assoaation of the Company
together with a copy of the existing Articles of Assoctation marked to show the changes bemng proposed n
Resolution § are avarlable for inspection at the registered office at Mountview House, 151 High Street, Southgate,
London N14 6EW dunng normal business hours on weekdays (Saturdays, Sundays and English pubhc hohdays
excepted) from the date of this notice untl the conclusion of the Meeting and will also be available for inspection
on the date and at the place of the Meeting from 15 muinutes prior to the commencement of the Meeting untl the
conclusion of the Meeting
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3 FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2010
v
; Final dividend record date 16 July
W
Annual Report Posted to Shareholders 16 July
b
? Annual General Meeting 11 August
A
; Final dividend payment 16 August
5
o Interim Results 2 December
L
c

Copaes of thus statement are being sent to shareholders Copies may be obtained from

the Company’s registered office

Mountview House
151 High Street
Southgate

London N14 6EW

All admurustrative enquuries relating to shareholdings should be addressed to the

Company’s Registrars

Capita Registrars
Northern House
Woodsome Park

Fenay Bnidge
Huddersfield

West Yorkshire HD8 0GA




